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1 MS. BOJKO: Thank you. Please 

2 pardon on my voice this evening, I have a bit of a 

3 cold. Let me know if you cannot hear me. 

4 At this time we'll go on the 

5 record. We will now commence the official record 

6 of the local hearing that the Public Utilities 

7 Commission of Ohio has assigned for public hearing 

8 at this time and place, Case Number 08-917-EL-SSO, 

9 captioned in the matter of the application of 

10 Columbus Southern Power Company for the approval of 

11 its electric security plan; and an amendment to its 

12 corporate separation plan and the sale and transfer 

13 of certain generating assets, and Case Number 

14 08-918-SSO, captioned in the matter of the 

15 application of Ohio Power Company for approval of 

16 its electric security plan; and an amendment to its 

17 corporate separation plan. 

18 Again, my name is Kim Bojko. I'm 

19 an attorney examiner with the commission's Legal 

20 Department and I am one of the attorney examiners 

21 assigned to this case. As previously mentioned, 

22 there are other commission personnel present at the 

23 hearing this evening, including again Commissioner 

24 Lemmie is here with us tonight. 

25 If you have any questions 
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1 concerning the utility plan other than the Columbus 

2 Southern Power or Ohio Power, we'll call them AP, 

3 they are AP-operated companies, if you have any 

4 questions other than about the applications pending 

5 before us today, which are commonly called the 

6 electric security plan, ESP's, then the commission 

7 staff will be happy to address those concerns for 

8 you either later this evening or at a later time. 

9 I note that there are a number of 

10 parties who have filed motions to intervene in this 

11 and they are participating in these cases before 

12 the commission. They are petitioners who are 

13 present for commercial customers, industrial 

14 customers, and there are various consumer advocates 

15 and I would like to ask counsel for the AEP to give 

16 an appearance as well as other interveners that are 

17 present here tonight. 

18 MR. RESNIK: Thank you. My name 

19 is Marvin Resnik and I'm appearing on behalf of 

20 Columbus Southern Power Company and Ohio Power 

21 Company. My address is one Riverside Plaza, 

22 Columbus, Ohio, 43215. 

23 MS. BOJKO: He is the counsel for 

24 AEP. I've got an indication from the back that 

25 they couldn't hear you. If you could turn around 
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1 maybe and broadcast that way. 

2 MR. RESNIK: My name is Marvin 

3 Resnik and I'm appearing as the attorney for the 

4 Columbus Power Company and Ohio Power company? 

5 MS. BOJKO: And on behalf of the 

6 office of Ohio Consumer's Counsel? 

7 MS. GRADY: Maurine R. Grady, 

8 Associate Consumers Council on behalf of Jeanine L. 

9 Migden-Ostrander, the Consumer's Counsel 

10 representing the residential rate payers of AEP, 

11 address is 10 West Broad Street, Suite 1800, 

12 Columbus, Ohio, 43215. Thank you. 

13 MS. BOJKO: Are there any other 

14 counsel for other interveners here tonight? I do 

15 not see any. 

16 On July 31st, Columbus Southern 

17 Power and Ohio Power Company, again AEP operating 

18 companies, they filed applications with the Public 

19 Utilities Commission to establish a standard 

20 service offer for competitive retail electric 

21 services and this was based on an electric security 

22 plan. The local public hearings are only one 

23 aspect of the case process. 

24 The evidentiary hearing is 

25 scheduled to commence on November 17th, 2008, at 
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1 the commission offices in Columbus. The purpose of 

2 that hearing is to allow AEP, the numerous 

3 interveners, and the commission staff to present 

4 expert witnesses and evidence in support of their 

5 positions in the case. 

6 In addition to the hearing 

7 tonight, the commission has scheduled four other 

8 hearings in AEP service territories and the purpose 

9 of tonight's public hearing is to receive comments 

10 from the public regarding AEP's applications. We 

11 will not be hearing from the companies this evening 

12 and we will not be hearing from the commission 

13 staff and we will not be hearing from other 

14 interveners because tonight is your opportunity to 

15 let the commission know what you think about the 

16 company's request for this ESP application. 

17 When you arrived you were offered 

18 the opportunity to sign up to testify. If you 

19 missed that opportunity, as Commissioner Lemmie 

20 stated, you may still proceed to the tables and 

21 sign up. It is not too late, and we will take the 

22 witnesses in the order that they have signed the 

23 sign-in sheet. Before you begin your statement, I 

24 will ask for your name and address. You will be 

25 required to take an oath or affirmation stating 
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1 what you are about to say is the truth. Your 

2 testimony will be considered part of the official 

3 record of the case and it will be reviewed by the 

4 commission before they make their final decision, 

5 and the attorney examiners assigned to the case, 

6 and all testimony will be under oath. 

7 Attorneys for the company and 

8 other parties are permitted to ask you questions 

9 about your statement while you are under oath, and 

10 should you decide that you do not want to testify, 

11 when I call your name you can merely pass to the 

12 next witness. And once you have finished 

13 testifying or if you are just in attendance to 

14 observe the hearing, you may leave at any time. 

15 As you may have noticed, tonight's 

16 hearing is transcribed by the court reporter. 

17 Basically that means that the court reporter will 

18 be recording your statement in a typewritten 

19 fashion and so please speak clearly so that the 

20 court reporter can accurately reflect your comments 

21 on the record. If you have a prepared statement, 

22 it is appreciated if you can give it to the court 

23 reporter. 

24 We a p p r e c i a t e y o u r p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

2 5 i n t o n i g h t ' s h e a r i n g a n d we w a n t e v e r y b o d y who 
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1 wished to make a public statement to do so. If you 

2 choose to testify, please remember there are others 

3 who also would like to testify and keep your 

4 statements to a reasonable period of time. 

5 Are there any questions about the 

6 process before we begin calling witnesses? Seeing 

7 none, at this time I will call our first witness. 

8 And again, I apologize if I have difficulty 

9 pronouncing or reading the name. Now we have Mr. 

10 Thomas Moore. 

11 (Mr. Moore was sworn.) 

12 MR. MOORE: My name is Thomas P. 

13 Moore. My residence address is 78 Red Oak Court, 

14 Bucyrus, Ohio. I'm representing the Crawford 

15 County Development Board of Bucyrus, Ohio. I'm 

16 president of that organization and its address is 

17 1695 Marion Road in Bucyrus. 

18 The Crawford County Development 

19 Board is a completely volunteer not-for-profit 

20 501(c) (3) corporation which was organized in the 

21 1990's with a charge to bring jobs to Bucyrus. In 

22 order to do so, we developed Crossroads Industrial 

23 Center and have attracted nearly 1,000 industrial 

24 jobs to Crossroads Industrial Center. 

25 It is anticipated that most 
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1 discussions regarding the AEP applications will 

2 center around dollar signs but the concern should 

3 be much broader and more inclusive than just dollar 

4 signs alone. 

5 AEP has been customer-focused and 

6 flexible in responding to our economic development 

7 needs, as opposed to some other utilities and firms 

8 who have responded in ways that fit their needs, 

9 desires or financial capabilities. AEP's continued 

10 flexibility and support of the economic development 

11 efforts of the Crawford County Development Board 

12 can help us continue moving forward in the 

13 attraction of even more jobs for Bucyrus. 

14 We urge the PUCO to not hamper 

15 those who feed economic development. Economic 

16 developers create jobs, which in turn bring tax 

17 revenues to the various levels of government and 

18 then reduce the demands upon the unemployment and 

19 welfare roles. Support of the AEP application 

20 would support the governor's strategic plan 

21 emphasis upon creating and retaining jobs for Ohio. 

22 Support. 

23 Support of the AEP application 

24 would provide dependability in maintaining AEP's 

25 equipment in top condition and providing 
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1 redundancies where appropriate, rather than AEP 

2 having to wait for emergency repairs. Such 

3 dependability is one of the criteria demanded by 

4 industrial prospects and has been one of the 

5 selling points for Crossroads Industrial Center. 

6 Sufficient income for AEP allows 

7 innovation and progress through planning changes as 

8 opposed to reacting to problems. AEP should be 

9 allowed to have sufficient revenue to conduct its 

10 own R&D rather than having to apply to governmental 

11 agencies for grants and loans that will satisfy 

12 political solutions, rather than solutions 

13 developed by those most directly involved in the 

14 progress required for utilities. 

15 The downsizing of one different 

16 utility has its economic development representative 

17 for us nearly 100 miles away from Bucyrus, by way 

18 of minor highways. In economic development there 

19 are times we can't wait that long. 

20 Top personnel cannot be attracted 

21 to utilities and firms that are required to 

22 de-emphasize research and development due to lack 

23 of financial support. 

24 Federal taxes are expected to 

25 increase, negatively affecting AEP's bottom line 

WWW. BRITTONANDASSOCIATES . COM 
DAYTON - (937) 228-3370 CINCINNATI (513) 651-3370 



10 

1 and reducing the funds available for AEP to 

2 operate. The recession will have uncertain 

3 effects. We expect a downturn in power demands and 

4 hence a reduction in revenue for AEP, while AEP's 

5 generation, transmission and distribution expenses 

6 continue at the same level, and we urge your 

7 support of the AEP proposal. Respectfully 

8 submitted, Thomas P. Moore, President, Crawford 

9 County Development Board. 

10 MS. LEMMIE: You may leave the 

11 microphone at the podium. 

12 MS. BOJKO: Next is Mr. Reynolds. 

13 Max Reynolds? Can you hear me in the back? Mr. 

14 Max Reynolds? Mr. Mike Richards? 

15 (Mr. Richards was sworn.) 

16 MR. RICHARDS: My name is Mike 

17 Richards and I am superintendent of the Allen East 

18 Local School District located at 9105 Hardin Way in 

19 Harrod, Ohio, zip code 45850. I'd like to thank 

20 the commission for giving the opportunity for me to 

21 speak regarding these proposed increases. 

22 I will say that during our 

23 construction of a brand new 180,000-square foot 

24 building which we are just entering our second year 

25 of occupancy, AEP worked very close with us and did 
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1 a very commendable job regarding how they worked 

2 with us to establish our new facility. It was a 

3 completely raw facility, so the power had to come 

4 there and they did a very good job. 

5 I have a big concern though. We 

6 were given a lot of constraints regarding our HVAC 

7 systems and because of that, our electrical costs 

8 increased an enormous amount. During the last 

9 fiscal year we spent nearly $170,000 on the 

10 electrical bill during our first year of occupancy, 

11 and as I look at the proposed 45 percent over the 

12 next three years, that would increase our 

13 electricity nearly three-quarters of a mill. 

14 We're a rural school district and 

15 rely on our taxpayers with the property tax. We 

16 cannot go in and change the price of our product 

17 nor can we adjust the different raw products that 

18 we use to manufacture. 

19 That would take our total 

20 electricity bill at the end of three years to 

21 nearly a quarter of a million dollars, which is far 

22 greater than the two mills. Our tax -- I'd like 

23 the commission to consider our taxpayers and the 

24 impact this increase could have on our student's 

25 education and our mission as a school district. 
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1 Thank you. 

2 MS. BOJKO: Kathy McLeod? 

3 (Ms. McLeod was sworn.) 

4 MS. MCLEOD: My name is Kathy 

5 McLeod. Thank you for the opportunity of allowing 

6 me to speak. I hadn't intended to speak and I 

7 don't have a prepared statement. However, I'm here 

8 to represent three groups, the elderly, which is 

9 me, I would be 65 in February, I'm very concerned 

10 about my electric bill when I'm no longer able to 

11 work to supplement my Social Security check. I 

12 won't be able to afford independent living with a 

13 45 percent increase in my electric bill. 

14 I also am here to represent single 

15 father's who are paying child support while trying 

16 to maintain a home to continue the relationship 

17 with the children, paying child support in the 

18 amount of $600 to $800 to $1,000 a month. An 

19 increase of 45 percent in that parent's electric 

20 bill would probably cause the parent to have to 

21 give up his independent living arrangement and 

22 seriously affect his relationship with his 

23 children. 

24 I ' m a l s o r e p r e s e n t i n g t h e s i n g l e 

25 m o t h e r w h o i s r e c e i v i n g t h e c h i l d s u p p o r t , t h e 
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1 single mother, who this particular mother is 

2 receiving $400 a month child support and works two 

3 jobs in order to maintain a small apartment in 

4 order to maintain her children there. An increase 

5 of 45 percent or more, which it indicates it could 

6 be more, would probably cause her to lose her 

7 independent living status. Thank you very much. 

8 MS. BOJKO: Could you also state 

9 your address? 

10 MS. MCLEOD: My address? For the 

11 record, I have two. My mailing address is P.O. Box 

12 1032, Lima, Ohio, 45802. My residence address is 

13 1912 East Elm Street, Lot 34 in Lima, Ohio, zip 

14 code 45804. 

15 MS. BOJKO: Next Ms. Brenda 

16 Stocker? 

17 (Ms. Stocker was sworn.) 

18 MS. STOCKER: My name is Brenda 

19 Stocker and my residence address is 2117 Spruce 

20 Drive, Elida, Ohio, 45807, and I'd like to thank 

21 you for this opportunity to come here tonight. 

22 I come on behalf of my school 

23 district, Elida Local Schools. I'm also a school 

24 board member for the Elida school district. We are 

25 requesting that American Electric Power Company be 
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1 denied the right to increase their rates 15 percent 

2 per year for the next three years for a total 

3 increase of 45 percent. An increase of this amount 

4 is excessive to any business or residence; however, 

5 towards a school district, along with many others, 

6 it will be devastating. 

7 The anticipated cost of Elida 

8 Local School's electric for 2008 will be $177,000. 

9 This figure is not something I made up, but it was 

10 given to me by our treasurer, Mr. Joel Parker. If 

11 we keep our electric usage at the same amount for 

12 the next three years, we will spend at least an 

13 extra $80,000. Our district will have, as will 

14 many districts, an increase of 15 percent of 

15 healthcare and expect a double digit increase in 

16 health care next year. Along with healthcare, the 

17 bus fuel has doubled since 2005. From 2005 to 2008 

18 our bus fuel costs have gone from $92,000 to 

19 $193,000 per year. It is my understanding that 

20 this rate increase may be driven by the cost of 

21 fuel. However, no one is giving the school 

22 districts more money to cover the increased cost of 

23 their fuel. 

24 Any increase is hard for school 

25 districts to absorb, but an increase of this amount 
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1 is totally out of line. As the school district, we 

2 irely on income that remains flat, both from our 

3 local millage and from our state aid. In fact, our 

4 state aid may be cut this year due to budget 

5 deficits at the state level. 

6 Unlike gas stations, grocery 

7 stores, restaurants, manufacturers and such, we are 

8 unable to increase the cost of our products and 

9 services to cover these increases. As you can see, 

10 an increase such as this will have a devastating 

11 effect on our district along with many other 

12 districts. Cuts will have to be made, certainly 

13 some that will directly impact the education that 

14 students receive. 

15 Please consider tonight American 

16 Electric Power Company's request to increase their 

17 rates. Thank you. 

18 MS. BOJKO: Ms. Ellen Townley? 

19 (Ms. Townley was sworn.) 

20 MS. TOWNLEY: Thank you. I'm from 

21 Paulding County. My name is Ellen Townley, excuse 

22 me. My address is 9307 U.S. 127 South Paulding, 

23 Ohio, 45879. Up in Paulding County things are 

24 tight. I not only have my own home but my father's 

25 home, and last month -- my father passed away in 
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1 March. Last month the electric bill in his house 

2 was $40. The only thing running was a security 

3 light. Transportation, distribution, generation 

4 charges kill us. Our local fair board of which I'm 

5 president on an average is $900 a month in just 

6 those three charges, not including any electricity. 

7 It makes it very difficult in a rural community. 

8 We're losing $17,000 funding for 

9 our fair because the county is in a jam with AEP. 

10 You know, the money they give us just barely 

11 covered the electric bill this past year. I don't 

12 want to take away from the kids. I'd like to see 

13 an $89 electric bill. I have a total electric 

14 bill, my average bill is $150 to $200 a month. 

15 I've never seen an $89 electric bill. 

16 So, you know, this 45 percent rate 

17 increase just is going to cause people to lose 

18 their electricity. Thank you. 

19 MS. BOJKO: Thank you. Mr. Rick 

20 Johnson? 

21 (Mr. Johnson was sworn.) 

22 MR. JOHNSON: I'm Rick Johnson and 

23 my residence is 112 5 North Grant Street, Lima, 

24 45801. I'm here to represent myself and also I'm a 

25 business man with a labor union out here which 
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1 we've got probably 90 retirees involved with that 

2 local and right now they are all on fixed incomes, 

3 and some of them is having to choose between 

4 medicine and food right now. You know, even the 

5 ones working, economic times get you tougher and 

6 tougher with, like the woman said before, with the 

7 fuel prices going up and all that which causes 

8 everything else to go up. 

9 I don't know how much more people 

10 can take in this country. For one thing, they want 

11 45 percent in three years. Does any of us get a 

12 raise of 45 percent in three years? I want to know 

13 that. I mean, the numbers, you just can't keep up. 

14 If everything keeps going like it is, everybody is 

15 going to be out in a cardboard box one of these 

16 days with no electric, no food. 

17 I ask PUCO to deny AEP's rate 

18 increase on this. I can understand a small 

19 percentage, but not no 15 percent a year. 

20 MS. BOJKO: Thank you. Mr. Sam 

21 Bassitt? 

22 (Mr. Bassitt was sworn.) 

23 MR. BASSITT: Good evening, I'm 

24 Sam Bassitt. I live at 604 Hefner Drive, Lima, 

25 Ohio, and someone in the back wanted very clear 

WWW. BRITTONANDASSOCIATES. COM 
DAYTON - (937) 228-3370 CINCINNATI (513) 651-3370 



18 

1 figures. If you have 15 percent on the first year, 

2 will it be in the second year 15 percent on top of 

3 the original plus the 15 percent? And then in the 

4 second year will it be on the original and not, you 

5 know, as cumulative? If it does accumulate -- I 

6 think folks have been citing 45 percent. The 

7 question is if it's cumulative it would be 52.89 

8 percent, just as a point of verification. 

9 It's a privilege to be here. I 

10 serve as one of the Allen County Commissioners. 

11 I'm in my sixth year as a commissioner. I'm 

12 certainly privileged to serve my community. My 

13 experiences with AEP go back to my childhood when 

14 my father was a lineman for the then Ohio Power 

15 Company. My father served as a lineman for nearly 

16 40 years and most of his time served with Ohio 

17 Power. Rich stories of challenges of providing 

18 dependable electric service to this community have 

19 been a part of my upbringing. It was a good career 

20 for my father and my family or our family, 

21 particularly in the depression years and the years 

22 surrounding the war years. 

23 Now my experiences are as a 

24 recipient of electrical services, as a residential 

25 user and as an elected official with stewardship 
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1 responsibilities for governmental services. As a 

2 resident I want my lowest possible cost to remain 

3 and not be higher for local services. As an 

4 elected official I want the same thing, but I also 

5 want greater service support to support the mission 

6 of our county. 

7 Recently we were asked by a new 

8 company for rapid electrical service, service 

9 support, for which we have to go through easement 

10 access owned by our county. We were extended quick 

11 and effective support from AEP and a construction 

12 was kept on schedule. 

13 On another occasion AEP was 

14 limited by a state regulatory group from potential 

15 action to provide service for some 12 months. 

16 Local officials and AEP were able to reduce this 

17 period significantly down to about 90 days to make 

18 this project more possible. 

19 We have found AEP to be 

20 responsible and responsive during challenging 

21 situations of weather conditions and accidents, as 

22 well as other natural and personal challenges. AEP 

23 has I believe been a good neighbor in our community 

24 and has added to the quality of life here in Allen 

25 County. 
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1 While I believe cost must be 

2 reviewed and controlled, and we are doing so here, 

3 those same services to our community must be 

4 maintained and constantly improved to meet the ever 

5 emerging needs of our community. Thank you. 

6 MS. LEMMIE: Thank you, 

7 Commissioner. 

8 MS. BOJKO: Mr. Joel Hatfield? 

9 (Mr. Hatfield was sworn.) 

10 MR. HATFIELD: Thank you for this 

11 opportunity. Obviously I represent Spencerville 

12 Local School District, the other side of the 

13 county. My name is Joel Hatfield, Spencerville, 

14 Ohio, again representing Spencerville Local 

15 Schools, 600 School Street, Spencerville, Ohio, 

16 45887. Thank you for this opportunity. 

17 We do r as Mr. Richards conveyed to 

18 this group, have concerns regarding the cost of 

19 these tremendous increases to our school district. 

20 We are very similar in size. We also have a new 

21 facility at Spencerville, almost identical size, 

22 180,000-square feet. This cost after three years 

23 would cost our school district about $85,000, which 

24 is equivalent to probably two teachers, or in this 

25 case, maybe loss of two teachers at the end of this 
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1 three years. 

2 I can appreciate Mr. Richards' 

3 statement about the good service they had while 

4 they were building, but we have experienced 

5 numerous problems with service. We are in a 

6 position in our village where we do experience a 

7 lot of lows in our electric. When a factory that's 

8 on the same line as we are brings up their 

9 equipment, it costs us a number of pumps, several 

10 servers. The last one cost $5,000 for us to 

11 replace and I realize this has nothing to do with 

12 this hearing, but I want point out that we would 

13 certainly entertain the idea of switching to 

14 Midwest Electric which is right across the road 

15 from our facility. They do offer discounts for 

16 geothermal systems, which we have put into our 

17 school district, which AEP does not offer. We have 

18 asked. 

19 So it would be great if we were in 

20 a position where we could bargain with another 

21 company for our electric to attempt to get a lower 

22 cost with these two companies in our neighborhood. 

23 It would not be the first time a 

24 school did this. Putnam County did have a choice 

25 between AEP and I believe it's the Paulding Putnam 
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1 Co-op, and they are getting a much better rate 

2 through the cooperative through AEP. Thank you 

3 very much. 

4 MS. LEMMIE: I do have a question 

5 for you. You talked about the village and the 

6 impact of a company coming online, I'm assuming 

7 starting their generation and how that impacts you. 

8 Are you talking about surges? 

9 MR. HATFIELD: Yes. We do have 

10 surges and we have like brown-outs which cost us 

11 equipment. 

12 MS. LEMMIE: Thank you. 

13 MS. BOJKO: Mr, John Davoli? 

14 (Mr. Davoli was sworn.) 

15 MR. DAVOLI: Hi. John Davoli. 

16 You were pretty close. 845 North County Line 

17 Street, Fostoria, Ohio. I'm also the mayor of our 

18 great city of Fostoria, so it's a pleasure to be 

19 here. 

20 Tonight I want to come talk a 

21 little bit about AEP with you if I could. I want 

22 to tell you that they've been very good partners in 

23 the city of Fostoria. We're in three counties, 

24 Wood, Seneca and Hancock, which makes it difficult 

25 in a lot of times with different government 

WWW. BRITTONANDASSOCIATES. COM 
DAYTON - (937) 228-3370 CINCINNATI (513) 651-3370 



23 

1 agencies, makes it unique and difficult for us and 

2 AEP has been a very good partner with the city of 

3 Fostoria. They are very good corporate citizens in 

4 Fostoria. 

5 I can tell you that the folks from 

6 AEP are always at all of our meetings. They attend 

7 a lot of our council meetings. They are very 

8 active with our Fostoria Economic Development 

9 Corporation which we're trying very hard, like 

10 every city, trying to get new business in town and 

11 they are helpful and we are trying to have a good 

12 business come to town to help us with that process, 

13 and they've been very good about that. 

14 Just a couple of quick items here. 

15 They are not just a faceless corporation in 

16 Fostoria. They are very active in the city. One 

17 of the things really quickly I'll talk about is 

18 they help us with a program that we have there. 

19 Since we are in three counties, we have nine county 

20 commissioners. They help us with a thing called 

21 Coffee, Commissioners and Conversation to bring the 

22 commissioners in to Fostoria because we are the 

23 stepchild of these different counties and they've 

24 been helpful with that. And it's an educational 

25 process for the community, so they are very 
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1 involved with that portion of that, not only just 

2 giving us electricity through the lines. 

3 The one thing I wanted to end with 

4 here is the reliability of their service and how 

5 they are -- how active they are in Fostoria. I've 

6 been mayor now going on my third term in Fostoria, 

7 and in early 2000 we had a tornado in Fostoria and 

8 we had another one just this past summer, another 

9 tornado that went through Fostoria. We had no 

10 tornadoes for 150 years. I become mayor, we have 

11 two of them. 

12 They were great to work with. 

13 They were right on the spot. We had of course some 

14 delays when everybody was without power, but they 

15 were right there. I remezaber this past summer when 

16 the tornadoes hit, it was in the middle of the 

17 night. A couple flashes and a couple of workers 

18 and AEP trucks pulling up saying, hey, Mayor. I 

19 introduce myself to them and they said, how can we 

20 help you out? Where is the most needed thing? And 

21 they were just fantastic to work with in that 

22 regard. 

23 We had the winds we just had 

24 recently and we had our power out for a bit, but 

25 power got back up very quickly, we felt, and they 
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1 are just a really good, stable force in Fostoria. 

2 You can hem and haw either way about what the rates 

3 would be, and I know some folks like to have no 

4 increase and some folks like to have a bigger 

5 increase, whatever side of the table you're sitting 

6 on. 

7 So on behalf of Fostoria, in our 

8 area up there, we need to keep a good, stable, 

9 strong AEP so when we do have something bad happen, 

10 they have the trucks, they have the manpower and 

11 they have the crews to come out and help us and 

12 help keep our hospital running and our plants 

13 going, keep those operations coming. We don't want 

14 to cut back and possibly hurt our city and the 

15 folks up there. 

16 I'm glad the decision is in your 

17 hands, not mine, because I know it's a tough one. 

18 We support AEP. They've been a good group to us, 

19 and if you need any people to get ahold of me, 

20 that's fine. Thank you for your time. 

21 MS. LEMMIE: Thank you. Mayor. We 

22 appreciate it. 

23 MS. BOJKO: Jackie Fox? 

24 (Ms. Fox was sworn.) 

25 MS. FOX: Hi, I'm Jackie Fox. My 
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1 name is Jackie Fox and I live at 908 east Eureka 

2 Street here in Lima, Ohio, 45804. And I also 

3 represent, and I apologize I have a cold as well, I 

4 represent the Local Community Action Agency that 

5 services this county. 

6 Now the Local Community Action 

7 Agency focuses on serving low income families. We 

8 have — every year we serve thousands upon 

9 thousands of families that are making -- their 

10 incomes are so low that they need emergency 

11 assistance to help pay their heating and their 

12 electric bills. 

13 Every year on November 1st when 

14 the program starts, we know we're going to have 

15 thousands of people that are going to line up, 

16 well, hundreds in the morning line up at our door 

17 because they don't have electricity, they don't 

18 have gas and that program starts November 1st. We 

19 already know that come a little bit, probably less 

20 than ten days here, there are 4,200 people that 

21 already have their gas shut off, that doesn't 

22 include AEP. 

23 Our low income families can't 

24 afford this increase, and for the most part, these 

25 are families that are making at 150 percent of the 
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1 poverty level or below. So if you look at the 

2 poverty level, what it is, what the feds use to 

3 describe a family living in poverty, it would be a 

4 family of four would need to make $22,000 a year or 

5 less in order to be at poverty level. 

6 The PIP program, which is an AEP 

7 program, is a percentage of income program where 

8 people who make less than 150 percent of the 

9 poverty level can get some help with -- they can 

10 pa-Y a percentage of their income, which is about 

11 ten percent. We have clients that come that can't 

12 even afford that ten percent. Then there's a whole 

13 group of people that are missing here and those are 

14 the people that are at 150 percent of the poverty 

15 level to 100 percent of the poverty level. These 

16 are a lot of times people on fixed incomes, 

17 elderly, disabled. 

18 Last week we had a disabled 

19 veteran come in and he was a senior and we had to 

20 turn him away from the PIP program because he 

21 wasn't eligible because he made over that 150 

22 percent poverty level. There is no bailout for the 

23 people that are expected to pay for this increase. 

24 Now, I am all for economic 

25 development and getting jobs, but what I believe 
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1 I'm going to see if this increase is approved is 

2 more people showing up at our agency asking for 

3 help because they can't afford to pay their 

4 electric or their heat or their mortgages because 

5 now they are making choices between the three, food 

6 and an increase in health insurance. 

7 Now as an agency I can tell you 

8 that we've had to make a lot of budget cuts, lack a 

9 services, probably 7,000 people a year and we have 

10 a $6.5 million budget. We've had to cut our 

11 budgets this year in order to absorb the increase 

12 in costs that we've had. 

13 What I'm asking is that AEP not be 

14 allowed to increase by that drastic of amount to 

15 hurt the people like non-profits like myself or 

16 small businesses or the low income or elderly 

17 people that are going to have to take this increase 

18 in cost and then, of course, there is no bailout 

19 for them because even LACA (sic) will have to turn 

20 them away. So I'd like for you to consider what 

21 the most vulnerable population is going to have an 

22 impact on this. Thank you. 

23 MS. BOJKO: Ms. Marva Cowlin. 

24 (Ms. Cowlin was sworn.) 

25 MS. COWLIN: My name is Marva 
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1 Cowlin. I live at 7 60 South Elizabeth Street here 

2 in Lima, Ohio. I too work for the Local Community 

3 Action Agency and I too would like to implore you 

4 to not have or permit AEP to have such a drastic 

5 rate increase for its customers. 

6 I realize when folks are doing 

7 business that they have to manage their bottom 

8 line, but there is also a double bottom line and 

9 that double bottom line are the people who are out 

10 there and its our charge to help people and we 

11 can't help folks if we're shutting off their 

12 utilities because folks are already having to make 

13 hard, tough decisions. They are having to do 

14 balancing acts. 

15 So who do I represent today? I 

16 represent any person out there that don't know how 

17 they are going to get from point A to point B in 

18 this economy that we have today, I represent my 

19 mom who said to me, I worked 25 years at Ford, I 

20 retired now, costs keep going up but my retirement 

21 isn't going up. How will I make it? She doesn't 

22 qualify for the programs that the Local Community 

23 Action Agency has. So we need somebody out there 

24 that will help the folks who don't qualify for the 

25 low income programs. 
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1 We need to help this emergent 

2 population of people who are becoming poor, not by 

3 their choice but because of circumstances beyond 

4 their control. And today what I just would like to 

5 say is that are we our brother's keeper? We are, 

6 and it's up to us to try to help folks, help the 

7 people that made this country, help those folks 

8 that have put in their time and now they are 

9 retired. They shouldn't have to worry about how 

10 they are going to live. They should be enjoying 

11 their retirement. So I just ask that you would 

12 just help the people. 

13 MS. BOJKO: Ms. Nancy Bowen? 

14 (Ms. Bowen was sworn.) 

15 MS. BOWEN: Thank you. I'm just 

16 here to say that AEP is a partner --

17 MS. BOJKO: If you could give your 

18 name and address, please. 

19 MS. BOWEN: Nancy Bowen, 515 East 

20 Main Street, VanWert, Ohio, 45891. AEP is a 

21 partner in economic development, particularly with 

22 small communities like VanWert. We have limited 

23 resources and in many cases AEP is there and could 

24 be the only entity available to help us out, 

25 particularly when it comes to site development, or 
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1 in the case of our Incubator Invitation Center, to 

2 help small businesses. They have a site and 

3 building database where all communities throughout 

4 the state can post their sites and buildings and 

5 those sites and buildings are then marketed 

6 throughout the country and the world. 

7 In 2002 VanWert had an F-4 tornado 

8 go through our industrial park and lost 400 jobs 

9 overnight. Eight companies were affected, and 

10 within a short period of time, AEP was able to get 

11 all those businesses up and running and the jobs 

12 were back very shortly. We didn't lose one job as 

13 a result of that tornado and we very well could 

14 have, if it had not been for the help of AEP. 

15 AEP has donated computers for our 

16 operation. AEP has been there for us in a lot of 

17 ways. We have a super site that we marketed to 

18 Honda back in 2 006 and we were the runner-up site 

19 for that particular project. And I can tell you 

20 that having AEP on board was a huge asset for us 

21 during that time. 

22 So I'm just here to say they are a 

23 partner. They do care about economic development, 

24 particularly when it comes to small towns and rural 

25 communities and we need to be on board. So it's 
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1 important to express that. Thank you. 

2 MS. BOJKO: Mr. Carl Lukehart? 

3 (Mr. Lukehart was sworn.) 

4 MR. LUKEHART: My name is Carl 

5 Lukehart, 4809 South Dixie Highway, Cridersville. 

6 One gentleman stated something about a 45 percent 

7 raise. We all want raises, but I think a raise is 

8 justified by the quality and amount of work you do 

9 for a company. 

10 In this pamphlet, why did AEP 

11 propose an ESP application to the PUCO capital 

12 improvements for the company energy delivery system 

13 which is the transmission lines, and this paper I 

14 got here, for environmental compliance. This is a 

15 letter from Chief Tim Moser for the Shawnee 

16 Township Fire Department addressed to me. He sent 

17 me the letter, but it was addressed to AEP. I'll 

18 read that letter. I don't think AEP is doing their 

19 job. 

20 Dear Ms. Wadsworth, she's the --

21 I'll back up. In the middle of June AEP did some 

22 brush and tree clearing underneath the transmission 

23 line going across the county. They left the brush 

24 on the overpass on South Dixie Highway going into 

25 Cridersville. There was a fire on that. This is 
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1 the police report on that fire by Ben Carey, Chief. 

2 6-25 of '08 is when I reported the fire. It 

3 happened that evening. 

4 This is a letter to Ms. Wadsworth 

5 from Tim Moser. I'm writing this letter in 

6 response to a complaint by a property owner at 4809 

7 South Dixie Highway, Allen County. This spot is in 

8 Shawnee Township. The complaint was entered around 

9 the recent clearing of trees under your high 

10 tension right-of-way along the elevated portion of 

11 South Dixie Highway, across most of the property 

12 owners' land, my land on the east side just south 

13 of the railroad tracks. 

14 Two weeks after the removal crews 

15 cleared the area, a fire was found to have started 

16 along the roadway in the brush that was left behind 

17 by the clearing contractor. The best determination 

18 is that a passing motorist threw a cigarette out 

19 the window and it landed in this brush. 

20 Fortunately, the fire self-extinguished without 

21 consequence. 

22 I concur with the property owner 

23 that this has the potential to be a problem if 

24 another fire occurs, which one did, especially if 

25 it occurs at an overhead fiberoptic line that goes 
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1 to Memorial Hospital. I'm asking that you have 

2 this area cleared of combustible debris and 

3 consider planting grass in this area. It seems to 

4 me that whatever political entity mows the 

5 right-of-way could then maintain this area for 

6 everyone to benefit. 

7 That's from Chief Tim Moser. I 

8 spoke with Tim Moser last Friday and to date AEP 

9 has still not even responded to this letter, I 

10 don't think AEP is doing their job to justify any 

11 raise in rates. I've talked to a County 

12 Commissioner Dan Wright. He's concerned with this, 

13 as well as the mayor, as well as Chief Moser, but 

14 AEP will still not go out there and take care of a 

15 fire problem that they've created. Thank you. 

16 MS. BOJKO: Mr. Tim Luc Wiermoin? 

17 (Mr. Luc Wiermoin was sworn.) 

18 MR. LUC WIERMOIN: My name is Tim 

19 Luc Wiermoin. I live at 1463 State Route 385, 

20 Waynesfield. I guess everybody else has about said 

21 what I've intended to say up here, but I'm with 

22 Rick Johnson out of the laborer's union hall and 

23 we're here representing 430 hard-working men and 

24 women who have to pay the electric bill that you're 

25 going to be making a decision on. 
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1 These laborers mix the mortar and 

2 position the block and the concrete for our 

3 hospital, our schools, our civic centers, YMCA's 

4 and water treatment facilities. Laborers are the 

5 workers that pave our highways, install sewer lines 

6 and water lines and help us to keep industrial 

7 facilities running. They work hard when they work. 

8 However, laborers spend a good amount of time in 

9 the winter laid off. When the rain and the ice and 

10 the snow come, the winter is an especially 

11 difficult time for seasonal workers. Of course 

12 this financially difficult time of the year has 

13 been made more difficult with the escalating price 

14 of heating fuel. 

15 If you add escalating electric 

16 rates into this equation, many laborers will be 

17 hard-pressed to make it through the winter. Our 

18 laborers may have to choose between food, 

19 electricity and heat, and we've heard that from a 

20 lot of people here today. This is especially true 

21 of retired members. Social Security and a small 

22 pension that may have been awarded 20 or 30 years 

23 ago just doesn't cut it at a 50 percent rate 

24 increase for AEP. 

25 A couple of years ago AEP was here 
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1 in town. I don't know if you all remember that. 

2 71^ey were asking for a similar kind of outrageous 

3 increase in electric rates. I called it a 

4 gluttonous request. I call it a request that aims 

5 high. It's the worse kind of negotiating that you 

6 can do. In fact, it's down right disingenuous to 

7 say that what we really want is 15 percent when 

8 you're hoping to satisfy the public at 10 because 

9 that's what this appears to be. 

10 I'd like to see AEP get what they 

11 need because obviously we do need economic 

12 development without a give-away to corporate bank 

13 accounts on the backs of ordinary taxpayers and 

14 rate payers. 

15 I don't think we should be giving 

16 away or bailing out any more corporate needs when, 

17 in fact, the needs of our community aren't being 

18 met. In the past AEP has requested ridiculous rate 

19 increases that have little to do with the cost of 

20 producing electricity. In this request here they 

21 are talking about reliability. Two years ago they 

22 were talking about the need for more money for 

23 reliability when, in fact, the reliability costs, 

24 as you well know, are already included as part of 

25 the rate schedule. 
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1 It's interesting to note that here 

2 again we're under the public cover to look to see 

3 what they can do if they spin the roulette wheel 

4 one more time. And that's what it appears to 

5 everyone here to be. How many more millions of net 

6 profit does the company need? We appreciate that 

7 the PUCO has wisely denied AEP's request for rate 

8 increases when the company did not need them. 

9 They are asking for additional 

10 money and it appears as though with their net worth 

11 and with their bottom line that they are doing it 

12 all over again. 

13 So what should the PUCO say to AEP 

14 in these tough economic times? How about just say 

15 no. It worked at another program pretty well, as I 

16 recall. AEP is not bargaining in good faith and 

17 our answer to them needs to reflect that if 

18 somebody makes a ridiculous offer, you counter with 

19 an equally ridiculous offer, which in this case 

20 would be zero percent increase. Come back to the 

21 bargaining table and talk to us about a reasonable 

22 increase if you need to produce electricity. 

23 Say no to all requests that are 

24 outrageous and over the top. Say no to the 

25 bargaining technique that is always aiming high to 
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1 get the highest possible rate of increase. Say no 

2 to AEP to protect seasonal workers, minimum wage 

3 workers and the elderly living on fixed incomes. 

4 Just say no to padding the corporate bottom line at 

5 the expense of rate payers. Thank you. 

6 MS. LEMMIE: Thank you. 

7 MS. BOJKO: Mr. Lonnie Hobson. 

8 MR. HOBSON: Who swore you all in? 

9 MS. LEMMIE: The chairman of the 

10 Public Utilities Commission swore me in, but we're 

11 here to hear from you. 

12 MR. HOBSON: This must be 

13 something dire because I've never met any of you. 

14 All I've had is problems with bills like this, so 

15 this must be something that's going on pretty good 

16 for you all to come forth to us because we've never 

17 had you here before. 

18 MS. LEMMIE: I was here several 

19 months ago. 

20 MR. HOBSON: My problem is 

21 whenever I've gotten ahold of you people, the party 

22 that I've had the problem with, they usually just 

23 blew me off. Do we have a problem as to whether 

24 you all are going to come in and take and look out 

25 for us, the people? Or are you just here having a 
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1 gab session with us? I mean, you are the ones that 

2 go in and check the companies out and make sure 

3 that everything is right; am I not correct? 

4 MS. LEMMIE: Yes. 

5 MR. HOBSON: So we must have 

6 something real wrong for you all to come here and 

7 get in touch with us. 

8 MS. LEMMIE: I will simply add 

9 that tonight we are here to hear from you and we 

10 have been here before to ask for public comment and 

11 for all of the rate increases that the companies 

12 across the state are filing pursuant to new 

13 legislation passed by the general assembly signed 

14 by the governor and went into the effect the 31st 

15 of July. We want to hear from the public about the 

16 proposed increases. 

17 We're here for the territory of 

18 AEP, as we have indicated from the beginning, but 

19 we're here to hear from you. We make the final 

20 determination on the proposed rate increase and we 

21 want to know what you think. 

22 MR. HOBSON: Not that it makes a 

23 difference, but I can't get into what I think, but 

24 I appreciate the fact that you all came to us and 

25 give us an opportunity to talk to you. And I kind 
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1 of feel out of place because I live in Lima, 700 

2 West Wayne Street, and as I look around, I don't 

3 see none of my counselmen, just the one. I don't 

4 see none of the people that can really stand up and 

5 help us. 

6 I mean, I worked for 33 years in a 

7 factory and the little people, well, I won't say 

8 little people, but the people working now $7, $8 an 

9 hour, that's just not going to get it. We got 

10 single mothers and fathers out here trying to work 

11 two jobs and then this electrical company, they got 

12 these itemized lists where they put a screw in the 

13 wall once a year and they get $15 for that screw. 

14 That's an itemized list. You know what I'm saying? 

15 MS. LEMMIE: I hear you. 

16 MR. HOBSON: So these $7 and $8 an 

17 hour j obs that everybody talks about, all these 

18 little businessmen, when these little businessmen 

19 rise up and make these million dollars and these 

20 people still out here working making $7 an hour, 

21 you know, we've got to have something. I know a 

22 change is coming, but that's not saying much right 

23 now. Winter's coming too. And a lot of people 

24 like me, I don't care because, hell, if it gets too 

25 bad for me, I get a slice of bologna and a loaf of 
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1 bread and I cut my heat off. I can do that because 

2 I'm single, but a lot of people out there with two 

3 or three kids, they can't do that and I'm sure that 

4 you are aware of that being in the position that 

5 you're in. 

6 So I really appreciate being able 

7 to come up here. I didn't want to get worked up 

8 because I understand that I'm not going to go too 

9 far on this anyway, okay, but I wanted to put that 

10 out here because I see a lot of my people missing 

11 which should be here and maybe we can push to get 

12 something done. 

13 But like I said, I'm really 

14 disappointed that none of my councilmen are here. 

15 Maybe they can stand up and say a little something. 

16 I'm pretty sure that would go a long way. So I 

17 want to thank you for letting me get up here and 

18 say this. And I think that I should go back and 

19 talk to the people about getting rid of some of the 

20 councilmen that are not here. They can run out --

21 they can run out in the city, charge people for 

22 grass not being cut, they can run out here in the 

23 city and charge you for the sidewalk not being 

24 clean, but they can't come to a meeting like this 

25 that's going to keep the taxpayers from being 
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1 railroaded or whatever you want to call it. I 

2 mean, to me that's not right. There's something 

3 wrong with that. 

4 When we have a fair out here, 

5 these motorcycle riders come in, make a million 

6 bucks, hell, every one of them is here, You know 

7 what I'm saying? But now that we have a problem 

8 with AEP and half of them probably get a cut on the 

9 electric anyway, ain't none of them showed up. So 

10 I mean, you know, the small businesses are all 

11 right, but you've got to make the concession for $7 

12 and $8 an hour jobs. That's in Mexico. And here 

13 we live back in the United States to come to this. 

14 That's a shame. 

15 And if I had known when I was 

16 wearing that green that I was going to have to cut 

17 back to this, the United States that used to be 

18 America and have to go through this kind of 

19 bullshit, you know, it's a shame. I never would 

20 have done that if I'd known because we don't have 

21 any business being like this. The economic going 

22 to -- we don't have no economy no more. These good 

23 ole boys in Washington, you know, and here a lot of 

24 us ready to go back right into the hole four more 

25 years and then we got you all sitting here trying 
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1 to make concessions for AEP. Hell, they are going 

2 to get theirs. It's us, the $7 and $8 an hour 

3 workers that's going to have to suffer. Your 

4 little kids that got to go to school with nappy 

5 heads, no breakfast, some of them get up, don't 

6 know where the next breakfast is coming from. 

7 AEP, hell, they know where the 

8 fuel is coming from and you all know this. You're 

9 aware of what's going on with AEP. You're aware of 

10 what's going on with us. We need a little help. 

11 And people like me need some kind of guidance so 

12 when they get up in front of you they know how to 

13 talk to you, you know. But like I said, I'm 

14 thankful you all gave me this opportunity because I 

15 did get worked all up and I feel a little bit 

16 better. Now I'm getting ready to get home so I can 

17 hook the oxygen up. Thank you all. 

18 MS. BOJKO: Ms. June Blauvelt. 

19 (Ms. Blauvelt was sworn.) 

20 MS. BLAUVELT: My name is June 

21 Blauvelt, 3067 Ertel Avenue, Lima, and I'm here to 

22 represent the residency people in the town. We are 

23 total electric. Can you imagine what our electric 

24 bill will be? And I fear for the elderly people, 

25 that they are going to have problems when that 
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1 comes around. So think about this twice before you 

2 decide to raise our rates up. We won't be able to 

3 do it because we're total electric. Thank you. 

4 MS. LEMMIE: Thank you. 

5 MS. BOJKO: While we're waiting, 

6 is there anyone else who would like to speak who 

7 did not sign up? 

8 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'd like to 

9 just say no. 

10 MS. BOJKO: State your name and 

11 address. 

12 MS. SMART: My name is Gail Smart, 

13 1240 East Market, Lima, 45804. I can't speak on 

14 behalf of everyone, but I can speak on behalf of 

15 myself and my family. There's many I can't speak 

16 for that is in the same situation as myself. I've 

17 been on both sides of the fence where I was paying 

18 support for my three children that I did not have 

19 custody of. I gained custody of my children and 

20 receive little support. I'm fortunate enough to be 

21 married to a person who gets sent home regularly 

22 due to lack of work. 

23 In trying to make our bills, we're 

24 currently looking at what else we can shut off in 

25 our home, telephone, Internet, cable. Explain 
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1 these things to an eight-year-old and 

2 nine-year-old. It's very difficult. But this type 

3 of a raise and our bills, birthdays, Christmas, 

4 holidays will not exist because folks like myself 

5 will not be able to afford to take care of our 

6 families. 

7 Those of us that cannot afford to 

8 do the little simple pleasures of taking our kids 

9 to the amusement parks won't be able to afford to 

10 take them down the street to the park because we 

11 won't have a home to live in. We won't have that 

12 home because we won't be able afford to go to work 

13 for that home. 

14 It's kind of disappointing that it 

15 wasn't mentioned more publicly about this. Many of 

16 my fellow neighbors, fellow workers, have no idea 

17 and this is something that affects everyone 

18 greatly. If there was a concert at the civic 

19 center, everyone in the neighboring counties and 

20 states would know. Something that affects us right 

21 here, something big like this, why was it kept so 

22 secret and hush? That's all I have to say. 

23 MS. BOJKO: Again, we do not have 

24 any other people on the witness list. Anybody 

25 else, one last time, that is present and that would 
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1 like look come up and offer their comments? 

2 Hearing none. 

3 MS. LEMMIE: Seeing none, moving 

4 forward, I would like to announce as we end the 

5 public hearing today that you can view all 

6 documents filed in this case on the PUCO web site 

7 at www.puco.Ohio.gov. There is also a fact sheet 

8 available that explains the process this evening 

9 and if you decide down the line that there's 

10 something you want to share with us and the hearing 

11 is over and you're not able to join us in Columbus 

12 tomorrow or next week, you can feel free to submit 

13 written comments to the PUCO, attention the 

14 Docketing Division, 180 East Broad Street, 

15 Columbus, Ohio, 43215. 

16 You can get the information about 

17 how to do that and any other information from our 

18 web site to contact the staff should you need 

19 further information. 

20 So you can contact us via our web 

21 site information. You can send us something in 

22 writing, if you so choose to do that in addition to 

23 what we've heard tonight. It will be taken into 

24 consideration by the commissioners in making their 

25 determination as to the filing we are discussing 
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tonight by AEP. Thank you very much for coming out 

tonight and we appreciate it. 

MS. BOJKO: Actually we've been 

asked to give our phone number. Recently there's 

been some people that do not have access to the 

Internet and they'd still like to call to get 

information. That's 1-800-686-7826, and that 

concludes the hearing today. 

Again, there are three other 

hearings still scheduled in this proceeding -- two 

other hearings still scheduled. And we will 

adjourn at this time. Thank you. 

(Hearing adjourned at 7:50 p.m.) 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I, Lisa K. Keller, a Registered Professional 

Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 

full, true and correct transcript of my notes taken 

in the above-styled case and thereafter transcribed 

by me. 

^ ^ ^ K\UdJL-
L i s a ' K . K e l l e r , RMR 

WWW. BRITTONANDASSOCIATES . COM 
DAYTON - (937) 228-3370 CINCINNATI (513) 651-3370 


